
 

STAFF REPORT 

Community Redevelopment Agency Regular Meeting 

March 28, 2024 

  

To: CRA Executive Board 

From: Dale L. Martin, City Manager 

Date: March 28, 2024 

Item Name: Proposal for Downtown Playbook Participation 

Background:  A goal that presented to Ms. Caryn Miller, CRA Executive Director, was the pursuit of the City’s 
participation with Main Street America. Main Street America, according to its web site, “leads an inclusive, impact-
driven movement dedicated to reenergizing and strengthening older and historic downtowns and neighborhood 
commercial districts nationwide.  program.” Unfortunately, due to application requirements, it was not possible 
to actively pursue participation this year. 

The Downtown Playbook appears to be a short-term alternative to Main Street America. Following completion of 
an online survey, Commissioner Rick Belhumeur was invited to participate in a remote interview for which I joined 
him. The Downtown Playbook consultants described the three “pillars” of their program: local ownership, 
aesthetics, and social engagement. Following the discussion, the consultants extended a formal invitation to the 
City of Flagler Beach. 

The program is a one-year effort to engage and excite local leaders (government and business) about 
opportunities. Given the dated nature of the City’s the 2002 Community Redevelopment Plan, 2003 downtown 
charette, and the 2006 Downtown Master Plan, the Downtown Playbook program may be a tool to reinvigorate 
the community as Flagler Beach enters its second hundred years. 

Commissioner Belhumeur may have additional comments. 

Fiscal Impact: The fee for participation in the Downtown Playbook program is $20,000. Funding for the program 
will be drawn from the Community Redevelopment Agency Fund, Line 101.5391.303100 (Professional Services). 
The current balance on that line is only $10,000, necessitating a transfer of $10,000 within the Community 
Redevelopment Agency Fund from Line 101.000.271000 (Fund Balance- Undesignated) to Line 101.5391.303100 
(Professional Services), as permitted by the City Municipal Code Sec 2-168 (Transfer of Funds by City Manager). 

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of City of Flagler Beach participation in the Downtown 
Playbook program and authorization for the City Manager and Community Redevelopment Director to coordinate 
the effort.  

Attachment:  Downtown Playbook summary  

 






